
                                                   CITY COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS                                      27376                                      

: OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS:

: OF THE CITY OF PEORIA, ILLINOIS :

Council Chambers, Peoria, Illinois, February 21, 2006, a City Council Meeting was held this date at 6:18 P.M., at City Hall, Council Chambers, 419 Fulton Street, Mayor Jim Ardis presiding.

 Meeting

ROLL CALL

Roll call showed the following Council Members present: Gulley, Jacob, Manning, Morris, Nichting, Sandberg, Spears, Turner, Van Auken, Mayor Ardis – 10;  Absent: Grayeb - 1. 
INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Mayor Ardis requested a moment of silent prayer or silent reflection, and then he led the Pledge of Allegiance.  Mayor Ardis said his Grandmother Ardis, who is approaching her 94th Birthday and is an avid Council watcher, had been hospitalized and he wished her a swift recovery. 
MINUTES

Council Member Nichting moved to approve the minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting held on February 14, 2006, as printed; seconded by Council Member Turner.
Approved by roll call vote.

Yeas:
Gulley, Jacob, Manning, Morris, Nichting, Sandberg, Spears, Turner, Van Auken, Mayor Ardis – 10;

Nays:
None.

PROCLAMATIONS, COMMENDATIONS, ETC.

(06-087)
PRESENTATION by MR. MARTY LYONS of GALLAGHER BENEFIT SERVICES Regarding the RESULTS of a BENCHMARKING SURVEY Conducted by the Joint Labor/Management Health Care Committee and the City's Health Care Consultants, Relating to HEALTH INSURANCE BENEFITS, with Recommendation to Receive and File.
Mayor Ardis urged the Council to present their questions at the end of the presentation.  He said those questions would be answered and a report would be presented by Mr. Lyons, along with full Council discussion, at a future meeting.  He said this presentation was for the Council’s information and for the Council to ask their questions.
Council Member Turner said he, Council Member Morris, and Council Member Van Auken served on the Health Care Committee, and he said he was an advocate of comparables.  He said the presentation would provide the Council with a look at the measurement of the City’s Health Plan Design in total and how behavior could be impacted by looking at more than just the metrics alone in the Health Care Report.

Director of Human Resources Pat Parsons introduced Mr. Marty Lyons of Gallagher Benefit Services, as well as Staff Members from Health Alliance, Members of the Health Care Committee, and City Staff.  

Mr. Marty Lyons, Vice-President of Gallagher Benefit Services, said the focus of his report was to provide a high level summary of the City Health Plan Design and cost attributes compared to Midwest and local employers, and governmental agencies.  He said he would review the types of plans being offered and the enrollment in these plans by employees. He stated he would also review specific plan attributes that were comparable.

27377                           CITY COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS                           FEBRUARY 21, 2006

Mr. Lyons provided an overview of an analysis by plan type regarding National versus Regional Enrollment, analysis by plan and employer, analysis regarding deductibles, analysis of out-of- pocket maximums, analysis of co-pays and co-insurance, analysis of employee contributions, analysis of Rx co-pays, and plan cost comparison.

Mr. Lyons commended the members of the Health Care Committee for their dedication and tireless efforts.  He said the group was very active in managing the current plan and reviewing the plan design. He added that the Health Care Committee planned to review retirement plan options because retirees were paying a much larger premium.  He said the Committee would be presenting that information in March, 2006, to the Council.  

In discussion with Council Member Manning regarding the future impact of GASB 45 on health care, Director Parsons explained the report on this issue was due in March, 2006.

City Manager Randy Oliver said the 2007 City Budget would be impacted by the new GASB 45 requirements.  He explained GASB 45 required a governmental employer, who provided post retirement benefits, to accrue for post retirement benefits in the same manner pensions were accrued.  He added, if certain rules were followed, the municipality would not have to accrue for previous benefits.  He said Gallagher Benefit Services was currently doing an analysis for the City and, in the next 60 days, they would report a target number for the City to reserve on their balance sheet to comply with GASB 45.  He said he had discussed the GASB 45 situation with the rating agencies, and they were not sure how they would handle this, because they understood it would have a major financial impact on most governmental employers.  

Council Member Manning requested preliminary estimates regarding the impact of GASB 45 on the 2007 Budget.

Mr. Lyons said he would have a definitive number within sixty days.  He said he planned to present the number to the Health Care Committee on March 8, 2006, and then they would move forward from there.  He explained the report would have two numbers, which related to the current liability that would be accrued each year and the accumulated liability that the City would incur for all current active employees and current retirees. 

Council Member Morris questioned if any governmental entity used the HSA application.

Mr. Lyons explained he had installed several HSA plans in municipalities, with one being similar to the City of Peoria having a committee.  He said the group went from a $250.00 deductible to a $2,000 deductible, which was an option, with the City paying 50% of the deductible amount into the HSA account.  He said there was approximately 1% enrollment.  He said the reason people would not enroll related to the Rx program.  He said there was no co-pay in an HSA Plan.  He said HSA attempted to perform two functions at once, and they were not doing either one very well.  He said they tried to reduce plan costs, but if no one signed up for it, then plan costs would not be reduced.  He said they also tried to put away savings for retirees, but the savings were maxed out at the level of the deductible.  He recommended, if someone was looking for a retirement account, they should consider HRA’s or VEBA’s.  He said he felt the committee would be looking for various options.  
Council Member Morris said he agreed the HSA plan should be reviewed by the committee. 

FEBRUARY 21, 2006                     CITY COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS                             27378                                      

Council Member Nichting requested that one additional table be calculated.  He pointed out that a significant portion of the City employees came from the Peoria area and were available to the private sector as well, and he said the analysis he would like to review regarded the pool of the private sector, meaning the Peoria area, where the City would be competing with larger companies in the area.  He said he would like to see that trend added to each table so the numbers could be reviewed.  
Council Member Nichting also referred to preventive health care or health screening, and he requested that Mr. Lyons provide statistical data on companies that used this and to show the benefits.

Mr. Lyons said the information could be subjective and it would depend on who conducted the survey.  He said he could do a survey on wellness to provide some quantitative information.  

Council Member Nichting questioned how costs of PPO’s and benefits offered by PPO’s were compared.  

Mayor Ardis urged the Council to contact Director Parsons with any further questions they may have so Mr. Lyons or Director Parsons would be able to answer those questions at a future meeting.

Council Member Morris moved to receive and file the presentation by Mr. Marty Lyons of Gallagher Benefit Services regarding the results of a benchmarking survey conducted by the Joint Labor/Management Health Care Committee and the City’s Health Care Consultants, relating to health insurance benefits; seconded by Council Member Turner.
Approved by roll call vote.

Yeas:
Gulley, Jacob, Manning, Morris, Nichting, Sandberg, Spears, Turner, Van Auken, Mayor Ardis – 10;

Nays:
None.

CONSIDERATION OF CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS BY OMNIBUS  VOTE, for the City of Peoria, with Recommendations as Outlined:

(06-088)
Communication from the City Manager and Director of Public Works Requesting Approval of the PARTIAL RELEASE of a STORM SEWER EASEMENT on LOT 9 of NORTHRIDGE MEADOWS SUBDIVISION.
(06-089)
Communication from the City Manager and Director of Planning and Growth Management Requesting Approval of TWO AGREEMENTS, in the Amounts of $45,524.00 and $45,523.00, Between the City of Peoria and CHILDREN'S HOME ASSOCIATION OF ILLINOIS to Provide YOUTH STATION ADJUSTMENT SERVICES from JULY 1, 2005, Through DECEMBER 13, 2005, and DECEMBER 14, 2005, Through JUNE 30, 2006, Per Two Grants from the Illinois Criminal Justice Information Authority.
(06-090)          Communication from the City Manager and Finance Director/Comptroller 

Requesting Adoption of ORDINANCE NO. 15,892 Amending the BUDGET for FISCAL YEAR 2006 of the City of Peoria Relating to the CHILDREN'S HOME ASSOCIATION OF ILLINOIS RECEIPT of TWO JUVENILE ACCOUNTABILITY INCENTIVE BLOCK GRANTS (JAIBG) Awarded Through the ILLINOIS CRIMINAL JUSTICE INFORMATION AUTHORITY (ICJIA).
27379                           CITY COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS                           FEBRUARY 21, 2006

(06-091)         
Communication from the City Manager and Director of Public Works       
Requesting Adoption of ORDINANCE NO. 15,893 VACATING FARRELLY COURT Between WEST GLEN AVENUE and WEST FARRELLY AVENUE.
(06-092)          Communication from the City Manager and Corporation Counsel 

*
Requesting Approval of the SITE APPLICATION for a CLASS B (Restaurant, Full-Service Bar) with a SUBCLASS 3A (Sidewalk Café) LIQUOR LICENSE for 2601 W. LAKE AVENUE, UNIT A-7, with Recommendation from the Liquor Commission to Approve.
(06-093)          Communication from the City Manager and Corporation Counsel   

**
Requesting Approval of the SITE APPLICATION for a CLASS B (Restaurant, Full-Service Bar) LIQUOR LICENSE for 7401 N. GRAND PRAIRIE DRIVE, with Recommendation from the Liquor Commission to Approve.
(06-094)          APPOINTMENT by Mayor Jim Ardis to the RENAISSANCE PARK 

COMMISSION, with Recommendation to Concur:
Dave Peters (Voting) – Term Expires 6/30/2006

(06-095)          REPORT of the CITY TREASURER REGINALD A. WILLIS for the MONTH of 

DECEMBER, 2005, with Recommendation to Receive and File.
Mayor Ardis questioned if the Council wanted any of the Consent Agenda items removed for further discussion.

Council Member Jacob requested that Item Nos. 06-092 and 06-093 be removed from the Consent Agenda for further discussion.

Council Member Nichting moved to approve the Consent Agenda items as outlined in the Council Communications; seconded by Council Member Turner
Item Nos. 06-088 through 06-095 (excluding Item Nos. 06-092 and 06-093), which was removed from the Consent Agenda for further discussion) were approved by roll call vote under the Omnibus Vote Designation.

Yeas:
Gulley, Jacob, Manning, Morris, Nichting, Sandberg, Spears, Turner, Van Auken, Mayor Ardis – 10;

Nays:
None.

(06-092)          Communication from the City Manager and Corporation Counsel 

*
Requesting Approval of the SITE APPLICATION for a CLASS B (Restaurant, Full-Service Bar) with a SUBCLASS 3A (Sidewalk Café) LIQUOR LICENSE for 2601 W. LAKE AVENUE, UNIT A-7, with Recommendation from the Liquor Commission to Approve.
Council Member Jacob said he would be abstaining from voting on this item because he was a liquor licensee and prohibited from voting on liquor related matters by State Statute 235 ILCS 5/6-2.
Council Member Nichting moved to approve the Site Application for a Class B (Restaurant, Full-Service Bar) with a Subclass 3A (Sidewalk Café) Liquor License for 2601 W. Lake Avenue, Unit A-7; seconded by Council Member Turner.

FEBRUARY 21, 2006                     CITY COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS                             27380                                      

Motion to approve the Site Application for a Class B (Restaurant, Full-Service Bar) with a Subclass 3A (Sidewalk Café) Liquor License for 2601 W. Lake Avenue, Unit A-7, was Approved by roll call vote.

Yeas:
Gulley, Manning, Morris, Nichting, Sandberg, Spears, Turner, Van Auken, 

Mayor Ardis – 9;

Nays:
None;

Abstention:  Jacob - 1.

(06-093)          Communication from the City Manager and Corporation Counsel   

**
Requesting Approval of the SITE APPLICATION for a CLASS B (Restaurant, Full-Service Bar) LIQUOR LICENSE for 7401 N. GRAND PRAIRIE DRIVE, with Recommendation from the Liquor Commission to Approve.
Council Member Jacob said he would be abstaining from voting on this item because he was a liquor licensee and prohibited from voting on liquor related matters by State Statute 235 ILCS 5/6-2.
Council Member Nichting moved to approve the Site Application for a Class B (Restaurant, Full-Service Bar) Liquor License for 7401 N. Grand Prairie Drive; seconded by Council Member Turner.
Approved by roll call vote.

Yeas:
Gulley, Manning, Morris, Nichting, Sandberg, Spears, Turner, Van Auken, 

Mayor Ardis – 9;

Nays:
None;

Abstention:  Jacob - 1.

(06-096)
Communication from the City Manager and Director of Planning and Growth Management with a Request from the Heart of Peoria Commission for SUPPORT from the City Council for FEDERAL FUNDS, in the Amount of $500,000, to PROVIDE for PHYSICAL IMPROVEMENTS within the WAREHOUSE DISTRICT, MARKETING for SPECIFIC AREAS within the HEART OF PEORIA PLAN AREA, AND/OR the ESTABLISHMENT of a DESIGN STUDIO.
Council Member Gulley moved to approve the request from the Heart of Peoria Commission for support from the City Council for Federal Funds, in the Amount of $500,000, to provide for physical improvements within the Warehouse District, marketing for specific areas within the Heart of Peoria Plan area, and/or the establishment of a Design Studio; seconded by Council Member Turner.
Council Member Gulley questioned the specifics of the establishment of a design studio.

Hearing no objections, Mayor Ardis granted Privilege of the Floor to Mr. Bill Washkuhn.
Mr. Bill Washkuhn, Chairman of the Heart of Peoria Commission, explained several other cities had Design Studios that had participated with local universities to provide a means of communication among professionals to move projects faster, not to over-tax City staff or resources, or over-tax the City Budget. He said a Design Studio would be located in the Warehouse District.  He said the proposal was laid out in a cafeteria-style manner so the Senator could make some choices regarding funding and projects.  He said the Design Studio was still just a concept at this point.

27381                           CITY COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS                           FEBRUARY 21, 2006

Mr. Washkuhn added, if any of these projects were selected, the concepts would have to be designed and brought back to the City Council for input and approval.
Motion to approve the request from the Heart of Peoria Commission for support from the City Council for Federal Funds, in the Amount of $500,000, to provide for physical improvements within the Warehouse District, marketing for specific areas within the Heart of Peoria Plan area, and/or the establishment of a Design Studio was approved by roll call vote.

Yeas:
Gulley, Jacob, Manning, Morris, Nichting, Sandberg, Spears, Turner, Van Auken, Mayor Ardis – 10;

Nays:
None.

(06-097)
Communication from the City Manager and Corporation Counsel Requesting Adoption of an ORDINANCE Amending CHAPTER 3 of the Code of the City of Peoria Pertaining to VOLUNTEER PERSONS UNDER THE AGE OF 21 YEARS in LIQUOR LICENSED ESTABLISHMENTS.
Council Member Jacob said he would be abstaining from voting on this item because he was a liquor licensee and prohibited from voting on liquor related matters by State Statute 235 ILCS 5/6-2.

Council Member Turner moved to adopt an Ordinance amending Chapter 3 of the Code of the City of Peoria pertaining to volunteer persons under the age of 21 years in liquor licensed establishments; seconded by Council Member Manning.

ORDINANCE NO. 15,894 was approved by roll call vote.

Yeas:
Gulley, Manning, Morris, Nichting, Sandberg, Spears, Turner, Van Auken, 
Mayor Ardis - 9
Nays:
None;


Abstentions:
Jacob – 1.

NEW BUSINESS

COMMENTS Regarding MEETING to Discuss the OPTION OF COOP STORES IN OLDER NEIGHBORHOODS
Council Member Gulley referred to the First District Solutions Group, and he said an idea came through that group to explore the option of coop stores in older neighborhoods.  He said a meeting would be held at City Hall in the Council Chambers at 5:00 P.M. on Monday, 
February 27, 2006.  He said larger chain stores were not interested in building in older neighborhoods, so this meeting would be held to discuss other options.    

COMMENTS Regarding AmerenCilco and REPLACEMENT of STREET LIGHTS that WERE BURNED OUT 
Council Member Sandberg referred to the most recent PeoriaCares Report, and he expressed concern regarding the number of complaints dealing with utility poles and street lights not working.  He questioned if Staff had viewed this situation as a trend.  
City Manager Randy Oliver said the issue related to AmerenCilco.  He explained bulbs were routinely replaced, but if a ballast had failed, then the construction crew had to make the repairs.  He said the construction crew sometimes had a problem making the repairs in a timely fashion.  He said he would continue to work on this situation with the company. 
FEBRUARY 21, 2006                     CITY COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS                             27382                                      

City Manager Randy Oliver said he felt that lighted street lights and porch lights in neighborhoods were the single most deterrent to crime.  He urged residents to light their property to deter crime.  
Council Member Van Auken, a former employee of Cilco, said Cilco had employees who drove different streets in the City, as part of their jobs, to report any street lights that had burned out. 

WELCOME TO LOCAL DIGNITARIES
Mayor Ardis welcomed former Council Member James K. Polk to the Council Meeting.
SELECTION of THE SHERIDAN-LOUCKS BUSINESS CORRIDOR as a SENIOR PROJECT for BRADLEY 
Council Member Van Auken commended the Economic Development Department for their work with her, Ms. Mary Ardapple, and a volunteer architect on an application for Bradley University to have the Sheridan – Loucks Business Corridor be a part of a senior project for business students.  She explained students would conduct surveys and assist with strategic marketing.  She said this was a competitive bid process and she said Economic Development Specialist Nichole Frederick informed her today that the project had been selected as a strategic marketing project by the Bradley students.

CONGRATULATIONS to PEORIAN MATT SAVOIE for PLACING SEVENTH in the MEN’S  FIGURE SKATING EVENT, Representing the UNITED STATES, at the 2006 WINTER OLYMPICS in TORINO, ITALY 
Council Member Morris congratulated Peorian Matt Savoie for placing seventh in the Men’s Figure Skating Event at the 2006 Winter Olympics in Torino, Italy.  He said the City was anxious for Matt to return to Peoria so citizens could celebrate Matt’s success at the Olympics and for representing his hometown so well.  He said he wished Matt and his family all the best. 

Mayor Ardis said there would be a coordinated effort between the City, the Park District, and others in the community to make sure Matt received the appropriate recognition when he returned to Peoria.    
CITIZEN REQUESTS TO ADDRESS THE COUNCIL

(06-098)
Request for CITIZENS to ADDRESS the CITY COUNCIL Regarding VARIOUS ISSUES.

Hearing no objections, Mayor Ardis granted Privilege of the Floor to those citizens wishing to 

address the City Council. 

Mr. James K. Polk, former City Council Member and resident of 2127 N. Ardell, said he represented the Family Involvement in Education Institute and the local Neighborhood School Council.  He explained the organization worked with parents and families regarding education problems and training.  He referred to a State-wide Conference he just attended regarding security and emergency response relating to the Hurricane Katrina disaster.  He said he understood that the City of Peoria had a disaster plan for residents, but he had not been informed about the plan.  He expressed concern that the details of the plan was not well known by members of the community.  He said he was on the City-Link Mass Transit Board and he knew there were many people in the community who were dependent on this kind of transportation. 

27383                           CITY COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS                           FEBRUARY 21, 2006

Mr. Polk said the poverty rate in the City was high and he was concerned that many of these people would not have transportation, if a disaster occurred.  He suggested that the City hold workshops or open forums to begin educating the public about the plan.
City Manager Oliver stated the City had started a program with Insight Cable and the City would have a half-hour program to focus on certain topics that would be broadcast on Channel 22.  He suggested that the disaster plan be presented on one of these programs.
Mr. Polk said he would like to be involved in the program, when it was broadcast.

Mr. Mike Langley, 1202 N. Ellis, discussed repairs to his home that had not been completed by the East Bluff Housing Service, and he said the lack of repairs had resulted in code violations. He requested assistance from the City in this matter.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

(06-099)
Requesting Approval of a Motion for the City Council to go into EXECUTIVE 
SESSION to Discuss 2(c)(1)  The appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance, or dismissal of specific employees of the public body, including hearing testimony on a complaint lodged against an employee to determine its validity; and 2(c)(11)  Litigation, when an action against, affecting, or on behalf of the particular public body has been filed and is pending before a court or administrative tribunal, or when the public body finds that such an action is probable or imminent.

Council Member Manning moved for the City Council to go into Executive Session to discuss
2(c)(1)  The appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance, or dismissal of specific employees of the public body, including hearing testimony on a complaint lodged against an employee to determine its validity; and 2(c)(11)  Litigation, when an action against, affecting, or on behalf of the particular public body has been filed and is pending before a court or administrative tribunal, or when the public body finds that such an action is probable or imminent; seconded by Council Member Jacob.
Approved by roll call vote.

Yeas:
Gulley, Jacob, Manning, Morris, Nichting, Sandberg, Spears, Turner, Van Auken, Mayor Ardis – 10;

Nays:
None.

ADJOURNMENT
Council Member Manning moved to adjourn the Regular City Council Meeting; seconded by Council Member Jacob.

Approved by viva voce vote.

The Council Meeting adjourned at  7:52 P.M.  

________________________________

Mary L. Haynes, MMC, City Clerk








City of Peoria, Illinois

bb
